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guaranteed by the U.S. Government, 
and 

(5) Payments by the U.S. Govern-
ment in cases of default on insured or 
guaranteed loans and other invest-
ments when the U.S. Government ac-
quires a debt instrument from the in-
sured. 

(g) Long-term loans and credits. ‘‘Long- 
term loans and credits’’ include any in-
debtedness under which the original 
payment terms provided for payment 
within a period of time exceeding one 
year after delivery or performance. 

(h) Official obligor. ‘‘Official obligors’’ 
are debtors or guarantors who are: 

(1) Central governments or their de-
partments (ministries) or components, 
whether administrative or commercial. 

(2) Political subdivisions such as 
states, provinces, departments, and 
municipalities. 

(3) Foreign central banks. 
(4) Other institutions (such as cor-

porations, development banks, rail-
ways, and utilities) when (i) the budget 
of the institution is subject to the ap-
proval of the government, or (ii) the 
government owns more than 50 percent 
of the voting stock or more than half 
of the members of the board of direc-
tors are government representatives, 
or (iii) in the case of default the gov-
ernment or central bank would become 
liable for the debt of the institution. 

(5) Any official multinational organi-
zation. 

(i) Private obligor. ‘‘Private obligors’’ 
are all debtors or guarantors who are 
not defined as ‘‘official obligors.’’ 

(j) Program. ‘‘Program’’ is the law, 
international treaty, appropriation, or 
other authority under which the loans 
or credits are extended, or the accounts 
receivable arise. When a narrative pro-
gram designation is required, com-
monly used terms should be used, e.g., 
Arms Export Control Act, Logistical 
Support, and Military Assistance Advi-
sory Groups. 

(k) Short-term loans and credits. 
‘‘Short-term loans and credits’’ include 
any indebtedness under which the 
original payment terms provided for 
payment within a period from 90 days 
to and including one year after deliv-
ery or performance. 

(l) Time conventions. The terms 30, 60 
and 90 days should be interpreted to 

mean 1, 2, and 3 calendar months, re-
spectively. That is, the period Feb-
ruary 6 through May 5 would be consid-
ered to be 90 days. For example, in cal-
culating amounts ‘‘due and unpaid’’ 90 
days or more as of December 31 the 
amounts due before October 1 and re-
maining unpaid as of December 31 
would be reportable. However, amounts 
due as of October 1 but remaining un-
paid at December 31 would not be re-
portable. 
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AUTHORITY: 28 U.S.C. 2461. 

SOURCE: 61 FR 67945, Dec. 26, 1996, unless 
otherwise noted. 

§ 269.1 Scope and purpose. 

The purpose of this part is to estab-
lish a mechanism for the regular ad-
justment for inflation of civil mone-
tary penalties and to adjust such pen-
alties in conformity with the Federal 
Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment 
Act of 1990, 46 U.S.C. 2461, as amended 
by the Debt Collection Improvement 
Act of 1996, Public Law 104–134, April 
26, 1996, in order to maintain the deter-
rent effect of civil monetary penalties 
and to promote compliance with the 
law. 

§ 269.2 Definitions. 

(a) Department. The Department of 
Defense. 

(b) Civil monetary penalty. Any pen-
alty, fine, or other sanction that: 

(1)(i) Is for a specific monetary 
amount as provided by Federal law; or 

(ii) Has a maximum amount provided 
by Federal law; 

(2) Is assessed or enforced by the De-
partment pursuant to Federal law; and 

(3) Is assessed or enforced pursuant 
to an administrative proceeding or a 
civil action in the Federal Courts. 
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(c) Consumer Price Index. The index 
for all urban consumers published by 
the Department of Labor. 

§ 269.3 Civil monetary penalty infla-
tion adjustment. 

The Department shall, not later than 
180 days after the enactment of the 
Debt Collection Improvement Act on 
April 23, 1996, and at least once every 4 
years thereafter— 

(a) By regulation adjustment each 
civil monetary penalty provided by law 
within the jurisdiction of the Depart-
ment of Defense by the inflation ad-
justment described in § 269.4; and 

(b) Publish each such update in the 
FEDERAL REGISTER. 

§ 269.4 Cost of living adjustments of 
civil monetary penalties. 

(a) The inflation adjustment under 
§ 269.3 shall be determined by increas-
ing the maximum civil monetary pen-
alty for each civil monetary penalty by 
the cost-of-living adjustment. Any in-
crease determined under this para-
graph shall be rounded to the nearest: 

(1) Multiple of $10 in the case of pen-
alties less than or equal to $100; 

(2) Multiple of $100 in the case of pen-
alties greater than $100 but less than or 
equal to $1,000; 

(3) Multiple of $1,000 in the case of 
penalties greater than $1,000 but less 
than or equal to $10,000; 

(4) Multiple of $5,000 in the case of 
penalties greater than $10,000 but less 
than or equal to $100,000; 

(5) Multiple of $10,000 in the case of 
penalties greater than $100,000 but less 
than or equal to $200,000; and 

(6) Multiple of $25,000 in the case of 
penalties greater than $200,000. 

(b) For purposes of paragraph (a) of 
this section, the term ‘‘cost-of-living 
adjustment’’ means the percentage (if 
any) for each civil monetary penalty 
by which the Consumer Price Index for 
the month of June of the calendar year 
preceding the adjustment, exceeds the 
Consumer Price Index for the month of 
June of the calendar year in which the 
amount of such civil monetary penalty 
was last set or adjusted pursuant to 
law. 

(c) Limitation on initial adjustment. 
The first adjustment of civil monetary 
penalty pursuant to § 269.3 may not ex-
ceed 10 percent of such penalty. 

(d) Inflation adjustment. Maximum 
civil monetary penalties within the ju-
risdiction of the Department of Defense 
are adjusted for inflation as follows: 

United States Code 
citation Civil monetary penalty description 

Maximum 
penalty 

amount as 
of 10/23/96 

New ad-
justed max-
imum pen-
alty amount 

10 U.S.C. 1094(c)(1) ..... Unlawful Provision of Health Care ........................................................... $5,000 $5,500 
10 U.S.C. 1102(k) .......... Wrongful Disclosure—Medical Records: 

First Offense ............................................................................................. 3,000 3,300 
Subsequent Offense ................................................................................. 20,000 22,000 

31 U.S.C. 1352 .............. Use of Appropriated Funds to Influence Contract: 
Minimum ................................................................................................... 10,000 11,000 
Maximum .................................................................................................. 100,000 110,000 

31 U.S.C. 3721(i) ........... Personal Property Loss Claims from Government Personnel ................. 1,000 1,100 
31 U.S.C. 3802(a)(1) ..... Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act/Violation Involving False Claim ....... 5,000 5,500 
31 U.S.C. 3802(a)(2) ..... Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act/Violation Involving False Statement 5,000 5,500 
33 U.S.C. 1319(g)(2)(A) § 404 Permit Condition Violation, Class I (per violation amount) .......... 10,000 11,000 
33 U.S.C. 1319(g)(2)(A) § 404 Permit Condition Violation, Class I (maximum amount) .............. 25,000 27,500 
33 U.S.C. 1319(g)(2)(B) § 404 Permit Condition Violation, Class II (per day amount) ................. 10,000 11,000 
33 U.S.C. 1319(g)(2)(B) § 404 Permit Condition Violation, Class II (maximum amount) ............. 125,000 137,500 
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§ 269.5 Application of increase to viola-
tions. 

Any increase in a civil monetary pen-
alty under this part shall apply only to 
violations which occur after the date 
the increase takes effect. 

PART 270—COMPENSATION OF 
CERTAIN FORMER OPERATIVES 
INCARCERATED BY THE DEMO-
CRATIC REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM 

Subpart A—General 

Sec. 
270.1 Purpose. 
270.2 Definitions. 
270.3 Effective date. 

Subpart B—Commission 

270.4 Membership. 
270.5 Staff. 

Subpart C—Standards and Verification of 
Eligibility 

270.6 Standards of eligibility. 
270.7 Verification of eligibility. 

Subpart D—Payment 

270.8 Authorization of payment. 
270.9 Amount of payment. 
270.10 Time limitations. 
270.11 Limitation on disbursements. 
270.12 Payment in full satisfaction of all 

claims against the United States. 
270.13 No right to judicial review or legal 

cause of action. 
270.14 Limitation on attorneys fees. 
270.15 Waiver of notary requirement. 

Subpart E—Appeal Procedures 

270.16 Notice of the Commission’s deter-
minations. 

270.17 Procedures for filing petitions for re-
consideration. 

270.18 Action on reconsideration. 

Subpart F—Reports to Congress 

270.19 Reports to Congress. 

APPENDIX A TO PART 270—APPLICATION FOR 
COMPENSATION OF VIETNAMESE COM-
MANDOS 

AUTHORITY: Sec. 657, Pub. L. 104–201, 110 
Stat. 2422. 

SOURCE: 63 FR 3472, Jan. 23, 1998, unless 
otherwise noted. 

Subpart A—General 
§ 270.1 Purpose. 

The purpose of this part is to imple-
ment section 657 of the National De-
fense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 
1997 (Pub. L. 104–201), which authorizes 
the Secretary of Defense to make pay-
ments to persons who demonstrate to 
the satisfaction of the Secretary of De-
fense that the persons were captured 
and incarcerated by the Democratic 
Republic of Vietnam as a result of the 
participation by the persons in certain 
operations conducted by the Republic 
of Vietnam. 

§ 270.2 Definitions. 
(a) Applicant. A person applying for 

payments under this part. 
(b) Child of an eligible person. A recog-

nized natural child, an adopted child, 
or a stepchild who lived with the eligi-
ble person in a regular parent-child re-
lationship. 

(c) Parents of an eligible person. Nat-
ural parents, adoptive parents, or step 
parents of a deceased person described 
in Part A of appendix A to this part. 
(Step parents must show that they es-
tablished a parent-child relationship 
with the deceased person described in 
Part A of appendix A to this part.) 

(d) Siblings by blood of an eligible per-
son. Siblings related by blood to a de-
ceased person described in Part A of 
appendix A to this part, including half- 
brothers and half-sisters. 

(e) The Commission. The Commission 
authorized to oversee payments to cer-
tain persons captured and incarcerated 
by the Democratic Republic of Viet-
nam, established under this part. 

(f) Eligible person. A person deter-
mined by the Commission as eligible 
for payment under subpart C of this 
part. 

(g) OPLAN 34A. The operation carried 
out under the auspices of the govern-
ment of South Vietnam and the U.S. 
Military Assistance Command Viet-
nam, Studies and Observations Group 
(MACV/SOG), starting in 1964, which 
inserted commandos into North Viet-
nam for the purpose of conducing intel-
ligence and other military activities. 
OPLAN 34A also refers to predecessor 
operations which were precursors to 
OPLAN 34A operations. OP 35 refers to 

VerDate Mar<15>2010 18:27 Jul 29, 2013 Jkt 229128 PO 00000 Frm 00675 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8010 Q:\32\32V2.TXT ofr150 PsN: PC150


		Superintendent of Documents
	2013-08-06T01:53:38-0400
	US GPO, Washington, DC 20401
	Superintendent of Documents
	GPO attests that this document has not been altered since it was disseminated by GPO




